
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

August 8, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Aug  8 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug  8 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug  8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 15 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Aug 22 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Beardsley Elementary,1027 McPherson St. 

Aug 22 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Beardsley Elementary,1027 McPherson St. 
Sep 12 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Sep 12 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 19 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

C. MINUTES  - 

 July 25, 2017 – Public Work Session 
July 25, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

D. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Annual Financial Report – The Annual Report for 2016-2017 is presented for 

Board information. 

 
 Food Commissary Financing Resolution 

 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

  



BOARD AGENDA August 8, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 5410 - The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Board Policy 5410, Promotion and Retention of Students, as initially 
presented at the Board’s July 25th regular meeting. 

 
 2018 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration seeks Board approval of 

the proposed Board of School Trustees meeting schedule for 2018, as 

initially presented at the Board’s July 25th regular meeting. 
 

 Communication Plan – The administration seeks Board approval of the 

proposed Communication Plan, as initially presented at the Board’s July 
25th regular.  
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Board Policy 8405 – The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 8405 - Environmental Health and Safety Issues - Indoor Air 

Quality, Animals in the Classroom, and Idling Vehicles on School Property, 
for initial consideration. 

 
 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of 

grants as recommended by the administration. 

 
G. PERSONNEL 

 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

July 25, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 5:45 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Carolyn R. Morris 
 Douglas K. Weaver Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Brenda Kolbe Cheryl Waggoner 
 Bill Kovach Wendy Wood 
 Dawn McGrath Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard the following presentations: Dawn McGrath, Deputy 
Superintendent, provided a report on high ability; Brenda Kolbe, Director of 
Communication, provided a review of the proposed Communication Plan and a 
review of the communication audit findings; Kevin Scott, Chief Financial Officer, 
presented a budget draft review. 
 
The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:15 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
July 25, 2017 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Carolyn R. Morris 

 Douglas K. Weaver Jeri E. Stahr 
   

Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
July 11, 2017 – Public Work Session 

July 11, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
July 12, 2017 – Public Work Session 
July 18, 2017 – Special Meeting/Work Session 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$1,535,235.22 as shown on the July 25, 2017, claims listing.  (Codified 

File 1718-06) 
 

Payment of 
Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $500.00 to 
Memorial High School’s (MHS) volleyball program from Boling Vision 
Center; and $10,240.00 from the MHS Booster Club to the MHS athletic 

department to purchase items in each sport program as follows: $1,000 
each to football, girls golf, boys basketball, girls basketball, wrestling, 
and softball; $840 to boys golf; $600 to cross country; $500 each to 

volleyball, boys soccer, girls soccer, and swimming; and $150 each to 
boys tennis and girls tennis. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – June 30, 
2017, and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial 
Report 

  



2 
 

Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, reported the following fund loans 
were made on June 30, 2017: $454,813.37 from Retirement/Severance 

Bond Fund to Debt Service; $1,100,000 from Capital Projects Fund to 
General Fund; $720,000 from Capital Projects Fund to Bus Replacement 
Fund; $153,000 from Referendum Tax Levy Fund to Bus Replacement 

Fund; and $118,000 from Referendum Tax Levy Fund to Bus 
Replacement Fund.  Mr. Scott noted all loans have been repaid effective 
June 30, 2017. 

 

Fund Loans 

By unanimous action, the Board approved textbook rental fees for the 
2017-2018 school year as follows: Kindergarten $48; grade 1 $110; 

grade 2 $100; grade 3 $107; grade 4 $91; grade 5 $72; and grade 6 
$87.  Middle school and high school fees are based on subjects in 

which student is enrolled. (Codified File 1718-07) 

 

Textbook 
Rental Fees 

Kevin Scott provided the current insurance report including medical 

plan experience costs compared year-to-date.  This report will be 
provided at the second meeting of each month going forward. 

Insurance 

Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1718-08) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 
Policy 2623 - Student Assessment, as initially presented at the July 11th 

regular meeting. 
 

Board Policy 
2623 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 
Policy 5460 - Graduation Requirements, as initially presented at the July 
11th regular meeting.  

 

Board Policy 
5460 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 
Policy 5530 – Drug Prevention, as initially presented at the July 11th 

regular meeting.  
 

Board Policy 
5530  

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 

Policy 8400 – School Safety, as initially presented at the July 11th 
regular meeting.  
 

Board Policy 

8400 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.06S – Secretarial/Business 
Compensation Plan.   

 

Board Policy 
3422.06S 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 5410 – 
Promotion and Retention of Students, for initial review. 

 

Board Policy 
5410 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a revision to the 2017-2018 
School Calendar.  The revision reflected the date change for Memorial 

High School’s graduation from June 10, 2018 to June 8, 2018.  (Codified 
File 1718-09) 
 

2017-2018 
School 

Calendar 

The Board was presented the proposed Board of School Trustees 
meeting schedule for 2018, for initial review. 
 

2018 Board 
Meeting 
Schedule 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved grant submissions presented 
by Ashley Molyneaux, Elkhart Education Foundation, Executive Director 

to the Elkhart Education Foundation.  A total of $29,214.78 was granted 
as follows: $18,510.78 for 2017 Fall teaching grant requests and 
$9,704.00 for 2017 Fall extra-curricular grants. (Codified File 1718-10) 

 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the July 25, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-11) 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

 

Personnel 
Report 

Employment of the following eight (8) certified staff members for 
the 2017-2018 school year:   

Amanda Brandy -  Kindergarten at Daly 
Sara Chrobot - Kindergarten at Riverview 

Alexa Fields - grade 5 at Hawthorne 
Lorinda Kline - instructional coach at Pierre Moran 
Shelbi Krecik - art at Monger 

Trisha Kucera - world culture at Hawthorne 
Holli Ness - grade 6 at Roosevelt 
Shannon Stanley - grade 1 at Roosevelt 

 

Certified 
Employment 

Retirement of certified staff member Earl Knudson, science at Pierre 
Moran, with 19 years of service. 

 

Certified 
Retirement 

 
Resignation of the following ten (10) certified staff members 
effective 6/30/17: 

Lindsey Blackford - grade 4 at Daly 
Jon Cerling - science at Memorial 
Marilyn Cregier - counselor at Central 

Angela Garcia - ENL at Central 
Kristine Martin - business at Central 
Jineane McCraner - grade 1 at Roosevelt 

Danielle Miller - psychologist at ESC 
Stacy Shields - math at Memorial 
Carolyn Repaich - intervention at Osolo 

Jason Yoder Rupp - math at Central 
 

Certified 
Resignation 

 

  



4 
 

Maternity leave for the following two (2) certified staff members, 
on dates indicated: 

Jessica Schibley – science at Central, beginning 8/15/17 
   and ending 9/1/17 
Randi Weidman – special education at Woodland 

   beginning 8/15/17 and ending 8/21/17 
 

Maternity 
Leave 

 

Retirement of following two (2) classified employees, on dates 
indicated, with years of service in parenthesis: 

Mary Yoder Holsopple, bully prevention coordinator at ESC, 

   8/1/17; (18) 
Gayle Tripp, paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 6/1/17 (34) 

 

Classified 
Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Lori Beber - paraprofessional at Central, 7/18/17 
Staci Franson - secretary at Central, 7/20/17 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Dwight Fish, 4th District City Councilman, spoke regarding the current 
school crossing guards funding issue.  Mr. Fish stated he is in favor of 
the City paying for the guards as recommended and in the budget 

provided by the Chief of Police.  Mr. Fish hopes the City and schools to 
be as one to consolidate the community along with the schools merging.  
Mr. Fish would like to see meetings between the school board, council, 

and the Mayor. 
 

From the 
Audience 
 

Andy Williams, former school board member, spoke regarding the 

current school crossing guards funding issue.  Mr. Williams also supports 
the City funding the guards and stated he knows the school board is 
eager to meet with the council.  He referenced the following: ‘When two 

elephants fight, it’s the grass that suffers”.   
 

From the 

Audience 
 

Board member, Karen Carter, respond to the speakers.  Mrs. Carter 

stated the Board has talked with the Council and none of the requested 
information such as wages, number of and location of guards was 

provided.  Mrs. Carter stated she had personally sent an email to Brian 
Dickerson and has not received a reply.  Mrs. Carter clarified the Board 
has been in communication and continues to try to communicate with 

the Council.  
 

From the Board 

 

The Communication Plan was presented for first reading by 

Superintendent, Rob Haworth. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a request from the 

administration, presented by Dr. Haworth, to grant the administration 
the authority to negotiate and enter into a lease with DRTY, LLC for 
temporary office space to be used by the school district. (Codified File 

1718-12) 
 

From the 

Superintendent 

  



5 
 

Board member, Doug Weaver commented on the presence of a Boy 
Scout in the audience.  While introducing himself, Jason Maxson, stated 

his attendance was helping him earn a merit badge.  Board President, 
Susan Daiber, invited Jason to assist her in adjourning the meeting. 
 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:35 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 

























































RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF
THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA,
TAKING ACTIONS REGARDING A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO LEASE

AND APPROVING ISSUANCE OF BONDS BY THE ELKHART COMMUNITY
SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart
County, Indiana (the “Board”), has previously investigated the need for the renovation,
remodeling, expansion and equipment upgrade of the existing Elkhart Community Schools Food
Commissary, other miscellaneous facility and/or equipping projects at facilities operated by the
Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana (the “School Corporation”), and any
projects related to any of such facility improvement, renovation and equipping projects, all to be
used in connection with the operation of the School Corporation (collectively, the “2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Board now finds that a need exists for the 2017 Food Commissary
Renovation Project, and that the School Corporation cannot provide the necessary funds to pay
the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project at the facilities to meet such needs;
and

WHEREAS, the Elkhart Community School Building Corporation (the “Building
Corporation”) was incorporated to assist the School Corporation in financing, from time to time,
the construction and renovation of school facilities to be operated by the School Corporation,
including the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, the School Corporation, as lessee, previously entered into a Lease, dated as
of August 26, 2014 (the “Original Lease”), as amended by an Addendum to Lease, dated as of
December 1, 2014 (the “First Addendum to Lease”), and as further amended by a Second
Addendum to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2014 (the “Second Addendum to Lease”)(the
Original Lease, as amended by the First Addendum to Lease and the Second Addendum to
Lease, the “Lease”), each with the Building Corporation, as lessor; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed desirable to proceed with the necessary negotiations and all
other steps looking toward the completion of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project;
and

WHEREAS, there have been prepared preliminary drawings, plans, specifications and
estimates for the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, said preliminary drawings, plans and specifications will be submitted to the
agencies designated by law to pass on plans and specifications for such buildings, and the
estimates for the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project have been submitted to
and now meet with the approval of this Board; and

WHEREAS, it now appears to this Board that said preliminary drawings, plans,
specifications and estimates provide for necessary school facilities; and

WHEREAS, this Board now desires, to the extent permitted by law, to take all of the
necessary steps to enter into an amendment to the Lease with the Building Corporation, pursuant



2

to which the Building Corporation and the School Corporation will finance all or a portion of the
2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and previously submitted to the members of the
Board a proposed form of a first amendment to lease and related addenda (collectively, the “First
Amendment to Lease”), by and between the Building Corporation, as lessor, and the School
Corporation, as lessee, for the lease of all or any portion of the premises subject to the Lease (the
“Premises”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code § 20-26-7-37, if this Board proposes to construct,
repair or alter a school building at a cost of more than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) that
would be financed by a lease agreement, issuing bonds or any other available method, it must
hold a public hearing at which explanations of the potential value of the proposed project to the
School Corporation and the community shall be given, and at which interested parties may
present testimony and questions; and

WHEREAS, the Board expects to pay for certain costs of the 2017 Food Commissary
Renovation Project (collectively, the “Expenditures”) prior to the issuance of the 2017 First
Mortgage Bonds (as hereinafter defined) and to reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds
received by the School Corporation upon the issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds by the
Building Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to declare its intent to reimburse the Expenditures
pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and Indiana Code § 5-1-14-6(c).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, that:

Section 1. Need exists for the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project, and the
2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project cannot be provided from any funds available to the
School Corporation.  This Board shall proceed to take such steps as may be necessary to secure
(1) the reimbursement for improvements to all or any portion of the Premises paid by the School
Corporation since the Premises have been owned by the Building Corporation, (2) the payment
of all costs of all or any portion of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project and all of the
costs associated therewith by the Building Corporation and the School Corporation, including,
but not limited to, the payment of all or any portion of the interest on the 2017 First Mortgage
Bonds, as determined by the School Corporation and the Building Corporation, and (3) the
continued, and extension of the, leasing of all or any portion of  the Premises by the Building
Corporation to the School Corporation as provided by Indiana Code 20-47-3, as amended, and
Indiana Code 20-47-4, as amended, with an increased annual lease rental not to exceed Two
Million Thirty-Two Thousand Dollars ($2,032,000) with respect to the 2017 First Mortgage
Bonds to be paid in semi-annual installments on June 30 and December 31 of each year
commencing no earlier than June 30 in the year immediately following the year in which the
2017 First Mortgage Bonds are issued and ending no later than the year which is two (2) years
thereafter.

Section 2. It is hereby determined to be proper and in the public interest to re-
approve the incorporation of the Building Corporation for the purpose of financing, constructing,



3

renovating, expanding and equipping certain school facilities and leasing the same to the School
Corporation, including the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project.

Section 3. The Board hereby re-approves the Articles of Incorporation of the
Building Corporation, the Code of By-Laws of the Building Corporation and the appointment of
William G. Cork, David C. Bonfiglio and Dr. John Hutchings to act as the current Directors of
the Building Corporation and to serve the remainder of a term (unless the Director resigns, is
removed or dies) of one year or until a successor is appointed and qualified.

Section 4. The 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project is in the public interest of
the patrons of the School Corporation and is a proper public purpose for which this Board agrees
to cooperate with the Building Corporation and assist it in fulfilling the requirements of all
agencies, including the federal, state and city governments.

Section 5. The Building Corporation, being duly organized to conduct business,
subject to the execution by the School Corporation of the First Amendment to Lease, (a) may
issue, sell and deliver one or more series of its first mortgage bonds (the “2017 First Mortgage
Bonds”), with a maximum term not to exceed two (2) calendar years, and in an original
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State
of Indiana, (b) may encumber any real property or equipment acquired by it for the purpose of
financing the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project, and (c) may enter into contracts for
the sale of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds and the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project.

Section 6. Upon the redemption or retirement of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds to be
issued by the Building Corporation in connection with the financing of the 2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project, the School Corporation will accept all or any portion of the
Premises from the Building Corporation, as renovated and expanded, free and clear of all liens
and encumbrances thereon, except as otherwise provided therefor in the Lease, as amended by
the First Amendment to Lease.

Section 7. The School Corporation shall apply the proceeds received by the School
Corporation from the Building Corporation for the reimbursement for improvements previously
made by the School Corporation to all or a portion of the Premises to the costs of all or a portion
of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project not funded by the Building Corporation.

Section 8. The terms and conditions of the proposed form of the First Amendment to
Lease and the preliminary plans, drawings, specifications and estimates of the 2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project are approved and agreed to as the basis for a hearing as required
by law, and such hearing shall be held by this Board upon the necessity for the execution of the
First Amendment to Lease and whether the lease rental provided therein is a fair and reasonable
rental for all or any portion of the Premises prior to the final determination of such questions so
that this Board may determine whether to execute the First Amendment to Lease as now written
or as modified hereafter by agreement of the parties prior to execution, and the President of the
Board is hereby authorized to call said hearing to be held on September 12, 2017, at 7:00 p.m.
(local time), in the J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, which is located at 2720 California
Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514.

Section 9. Pursuant to Indiana Code § 20-26-7-37, the Board authorizes the holding
of a public hearing on September 12, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. (local time), in the J.C. Rice Educational



4

Services Center, which is located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at which
explanations of the potential value of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project to the
School Corporation and the community shall be given, and at which interested parties may
present testimony and questions.

Section 10. The Board hereby declares its official intent that, to the extent permitted
by law, to execute the First Amendment to Lease with the Building Corporation, to request the
Building Corporation to issue the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds in one or more series or issues, in
an original aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, and to reimburse costs of each
of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project consisting of the Expenditures from proceeds
of the sale of such the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds.

Section 11. Any officer of the School Corporation, the Superintendent of the School
Corporation, the Chief Financial Office of the School Corporation or any of his/her designee be,
and hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed, on behalf of the School Corporation to
publish notices of said public hearings and to take any other action as such officer deems
necessary or desirable to effectuate the foregoing resolutions, and any such publication or other
actions heretofore made or taken be, and hereby are, ratified and approved.

This Resolution hereby is ADOPTED by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart
Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, this 8th day of August, 2017.

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

AYE NAY

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of School Trustees

DMS JJQ 10541378v2



Draft of 07/03/17

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE

between

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION,
Lessor

and

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA,

Lessee

Dated as of __________, 2017

Cross Reference: This instrument supplements and amends the Lease, dated as of August 26,
2014, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, on December 30, 2014,
as Document No. 2014-25435.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE is entered into as of this _____ day of
__________, 2017 (the “First Amendment”), between ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL
BUILDING CORPORATION, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Indiana, as lessor (the “Lessor”), and ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART
COUNTY, INDIANA, a school corporation existing under the laws of the State of Indiana, as
lessee (the “Lessee”).

1. The Lessor and the Lessee entered into a Lease, dated as of August 26, 2014 (the
“Original Lease”), as amended by an Addendum to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2014 (the
“First Addendum to Lease”), and as further amended by a Second Addendum to Lease, dated as
of December 1, 2014 (the “Second Addendum to Lease”) (the Original Lease, as amended by the
First Addendum to Lease and the Second Addendum to Lease, the “Lease”).

2. The Lessor and the Lessee wish to further amend the Lease by modifying the term
of the Lease and increasing the rent payable under the Lease to provide the Lessor with the
ability to issue additional first mortgage bonds (the “2017 First Mortgage Bonds”) for the
purpose of financing all or any portion of (a) reimbursements to the Lessee for the costs of
improvements to the Premises (as defined in the Lease) previously incurred by the Lessee
following the date the Premises were acquired by the Lessor, which the Lessee will then use to
pay for the renovation, remodeling, expansion and equipment upgrade of the existing Elkhart
Community Schools Food Commissary, other miscellaneous facility and/or equipping projects at
facilities operated by the Lessee, and any projects related to any of such facility improvement,
renovation and equipping projects, and (b) the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of
the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, including, but not limited to, all or a portion of the interest on
2017 First Mortgage Bonds as determined by the Lessor and the Lessee (collectively, the “2017
Food Commissary Renovation Project”).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the covenants and agreements
hereinafter contained, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Lessor and the Lessee agree as follows:

PART I

RENTAL PAYMENTS

Section 2 of the Original Lease, as previously supplemented and amended, is hereby
further amended by adding at the end thereof the following paragraphs:

“(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Lessee agrees to pay additional rental for the
Premises in an annual amount not to exceed Two Million Thirty-Two Thousand Dollars
($2,032,000.00).  Such additional rental shall be paid in semi-annual installments on June 30 and
December 31 of each year commencing no earlier than June 30 in the year immediately
following the year in which the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds are issued and ending no later than
the year which is two (2) years thereafter.  All rentals payable under the terms of this Lease shall



2

be paid by the Lessee to Trustee.  All payments so made by the Lessee shall be considered as
payments to the Lessor of the rentals payable hereunder.”

“(d) After the sale of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, the annual rental shall be
reduced to an amount sufficient to pay principal and interest due on all Bonds in each twelve
(12) month period commencing on June 30 of each year, together with incidental costs in each
year in an amount to be determined at the time the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds are sold for the
purpose of paying annual trustee fees and related costs, payable in semi-annual installments.  In
addition, each such reduced semi-annual installment shall be based on the value of the Premises,
together with the Improvements located on the real estate which is then subject to this Lease
together with that portion of the constructed, renovated or remodeled Improvements as they
currently exist and which are complete and ready for use and occupancy by the Lessee at the
time such semi-annual installment is made.  Such amount shall be endorsed on this Lease at the
end hereof in the form of Exhibit A attached to the First Amendment and made a part hereof by
the parties as soon as the same can be done after the sale of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, and
such endorsement shall be recorded as an addendum to this Lease.”

PART II

TERM

Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to the contrary, the term of the Lease with respect
to the additional rental set forth in Part I of this First Amendment shall end in the year which is
two years after the date of the issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, or such earlier date as
set forth in an addendum to this First Amendment executed by the Lessor and Lessee at the
issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds by the Lessor in connection with the 2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project.

PART III

REAFFIRMATION OF LEASE

Except as otherwise provided herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the Lease, as
previously supplemented and amended, are hereby ratified and affirmed.



3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor and Lessee have executed this First Amendment to
Lease as of the date and year first above written.

LESSEE

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

By:
Susan C. Daiber, President of the Board of
School Trustees

ATTEST:

Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary of the Board of
School Trustees

LESSOR

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL
BUILDING CORPORATION

By:
William G. Cork, President

ATTEST:

Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary



4

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF _________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this _____
day of ________________, 2017, personally appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John Hutchings,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Elkhart Community
School Building Corporation and acknowledged the execution of this First Amendment to Lease
for and on behalf of said Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:



5

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ____________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this
______ day of __________, 2017, personally appeared Susan C. Daiber and Douglas K. Weaver,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of School
Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged the
execution of this First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said School District.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP,
11 South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204.



A-1

EXHIBIT A
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE BETWEEN

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, LESSOR,
AND ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, LESSEE



A-2

ADDENDUM TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, LESSOR,

AND ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, LESSEE

THIS ADDENDUM TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE (this “Addendum”), entered
into as of this day of ____________, 20__, by and between the ELKHART COMMUNITY
SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, an Indiana nonprofit corporation (the “Lessor”), and
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, Indiana, a public school
corporation existing under by the laws of the State of Indiana (the “Lessee”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor entered into a lease with the Lessee dated as of August 26, 2014, as
previously amended (the “Original Lease”); and

WHEREAS, the Lessor entered into a First Amendment to Lease with the Lessee, dated as
of __________, 2017 (the “First Amendment”); and

WHEREAS, it is provided in the First Amendment that there shall be endorsed thereon the
adjusted rental following the issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds (as defined therein).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED, CERTIFIED AND STIPULATED by
the undersigned that the adjusted rental is set forth on Appendix I attached hereto.



A-3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Addendum to First
Amendment to Lease to be executed for and on their behalf as of the day and year first above
written.

LESSEE

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

By:
Susan C. Daiber, President of the Board of
School Trustees

ATTEST:

Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary of the Board of
School Trustees

LESSOR

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL
BUILDING CORPORATION

By:
William G. Cork, President

ATTEST:

Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary



A-4

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ___________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this _____
day of ________________, 2017, personally appeared Susan C. Daiber and Douglas K. Weaver,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Elkhart Community
School Building Corporation and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Addendum to
First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:



A-5

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ____________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this
______ day of __________, 2017, personally appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John
Hutchings, personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of
School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged
the execution of the foregoing Addendum to First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said
School District.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP,
11 South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204.



A-6

Appendix I to Addendum to First Amendment to Lease

Rental Schedule

The Rental Schedule for the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds is set forth
on the immediately following page.

DMS JJQ 10542736v2





BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5410/page 1 of 4 

(includes revisions made following the 7/25/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS 
 
 
ALL GRADES 
 
Students shall be placed at the grade level for which they are best adjusted 
academically, socially, chronologically, and emotionally.  Grade placement shall be 
determined by the building principal or designee, in accordance with District policies 
and regulations, after receiving input from appropriate individuals.  The educational 
program shall normally provide for continuous progress of students from grade to 
grade on an annual basis.  Most often students are best placed with others of like 
age, but occasionally students may profit by a variation from the normal grade 
progression.  Advancement or retention shall be considered for students who are 
performing significantly above or below grade placement, or are experiencing 
extreme difficulty in social or emotional progress.  A student shall not be retained for 
the sole purpose of improving the student's ability to participate in extracurricular 
programs. 
 
Students who fail to meet established standards for the annual Indiana Statewide 
Test of Education Progress (ISTEP+) are required to participate in skill enhancement 
programs as described in Policy IGBE.  Students who fail to participate in required 
skill enhancement programs will be retained unless retention has been properly 
waived in accordance with Policy IGBE. 
 
Principals, in collaboration with teachers and parents, may retain a student based 
on classroom performance, e.g. grades, attendance, discipline records, social skills, 
etc.  This decision may be made even if a student scores above standards on 
statewide or District assessments. 
 
The educational program shall normally provide for continuous progress of all 
students from grade to grade on an annual basis. Students are typically best served 
when they have access to grade-level curriculum and differentiated instruction 
alongside others of like age. Occasionally, a student may profit from a variation in 
the normal grade progression.  
 
Advancement or retention shall be considered for students who are performing 
exceptionally above or below peers in their grade placement or for students who are 
experiencing extreme difficulty in social or emotional progress due to the grade 
placement. 
 
PROMOTION/RETENTION IN GRADES K-8 
 
When retention is being considered, procedures in Administrative Regulation IKE 
shall be initiated.  Retention procedures shall be completed after a review with 
teacher(s) and parent(s)/guardian. 



BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5410/page 2 of 4 

(includes revisions made following the 7/25/17 BST meeting) 
 
For a student not receiving special education services, advancement to the next 
grade level will occur only upon the approval of the building principal.  The principal 
shall make a decision based upon an analysis of objective data and after 
consultation with staff members who are knowledgeable about the student's 
performance.  To form the objective basis for the principal's determination, data to 
be considered will include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

A. ISTEP+ Test Results 
 
B. Grades 
 
 
 
C Attendance  
 
D. Classroom Performance 
 

Decisions regarding promotion/retention of special education students will be made 
by a case conference committee. 
 
ENL students will not be retained on the basis of their language deficiency. 
 
Decisions about the promotion/retention of students for the next school year will be 
made prior to the end of the current school year.  In all instances, when a student is 
to be retained, a conference shall be held by the principal with the student's 
parent/guardian and, when appropriate, teacher or counselor. 
 
The Board will comply with the requirements of the Indiana Department of 
Education regarding the consequences for students in grade three who fail to pass 
the Indiana Reading Evaluation and Determination Assessment (IREAD-3).  
Accordingly, a student who does not pass the IREAD-3 assessment either during the 
assessment period in the school year or during the summer assessment window, in 
the following school year, will continue to receive instruction in grade three reading 
and will be officially reported as a third grader.  
 
Good cause exemptions that may be considered are: 
 
 A. a student who has been previously retained two times prior to the 

fourth grade; 
   
 B. a student with disabilities whose case conference committee has 

determined that promotion is appropriate; 
   
 C. an English learner student whose Individual Learning Plan (ILP) 

Committee has determined that promotion is appropriate. 
 
PROMOTION IN GRADES K-8 



BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5410/page 3 of 4 

(includes revisions made following the 7/25/17 BST meeting) 
 
Students who have been identified as high ability, through the process outlined in 
Board Policy 2462, will typically participate in a normal grade progression receiving 
instruction more challenging within or beyond the general education curriculum.  In 
the case of a student who would benefit from routine access to accelerated 
curriculum in all subject areas, a grade promotion may be considered.  The principal 
must analyze objective data in the student’s Advanced Learning Plan (ALP) and, 
in consultation with family and staff members who are knowledgeable about the 
student's performance and maturity, determine if grade promotion is appropriate for 
the individual student.  Requests for the promotion of students for the next school 
year will be approved or denied by the administrator serving as the High Ability 
Coordinator. 
 
RETENTION IN GRADES K-8 
 
Retention may be considered for students who have been unsuccessful due to (1) a 
developmental mismatch between the student and his or her chronological grade 
placement or (2) an extreme lack of opportunity to experience the curriculum. 
 
In order for retention to be considered, the school team must initiate procedures in 
Administrative Regulation IKE.  It is a requirement for school personnel to include 
parents in the process of analyzing data, formulate a hypothesis of the root cause of 
the student’s difficulty, and implement a high-quality intervention plan.  An 
administrator will conduct a classroom visit to learn more about what is being done 
to provide an instructional match for the student’s individual needs. If the school 
team intends to recommend retention, rationale must be provided on how retention 
will address the root cause in a way grade level advancement cannot.  Requests for 
the retention of students for the next school year will be approved or denied by the 
Instructional Leadership Department. In all instances, when a student is to be 
retained, a conference shall be held by the principal with the student's 
parent/guardian. 
 
Retention recommendations must be accompanied with evidence of a comprehensive 
data-based intervention plan which has been attempted.  A student shall not be 
retained for the sole purpose of improving the student's ability to participate in 
extracurricular programs. Decisions regarding promotion/retention of special 
education students will include this process, will be made by a case conference 
committee, and shall not be based on the existence of a disability alone.  ENL 
students will not be retained on the basis of their language deficiency.  
 
The Board will comply with the requirements of the Indiana Department of 
Education regarding the consequences for students in grade three who fail to pass 
IREAD-3. Accordingly, a student who does not pass the IREAD-3 assessment either 
during the assessment period in the school year or during the summer assessment 
window in the following school year, will continue to receive instruction in grade 
three reading and will only be officially reported as a third grader when retained in 
all subject areas.  Good cause exemptions which may be considered are: (a) a 
student who has been previously retained two times prior to the fourth grade; (b) a 



BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5410/page 4 of 4 

(includes revisions made following the 7/25/17 BST meeting) 
student with disabilities whose case conference committee has determined 
promotion is appropriate; and (c) an English language learner whose Individual 
Learning Plan (ILP) Committee has determined promotion is appropriate. 
 
I.C. 20-32-8.5 
511 IAC 6.1-5-10 - Retaining student for athletic purposes prohibited 
511 IAC 6.2-3.1-3 
 
August 8, 2017 
 



 
 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Regular Board of School Trustees’ Meetings - 2018 

 
Regular meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center,  

2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 
 

A public work session is held at 5:30 p.m. preceding each regular meeting in the J.C. Rice 
Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted 

 
January    9, 2018 July  10, 2018 

 
January 23, 2018 July  24, 2018 

 
February 13, 2018  
 

August  14, 2018 
 

February 27, 2018 
5 pm at No. Side prior to BB 

August  28, 2018 
 

March  13, 2018 September 11, 2018 
 

March  27, 2018 
 

September 25, 2018 

April  10, 2018 October   9, 2018  
 

April  24, 2018 October 23, 2018 
 

May    8, 2018 
 

November 13, 2018 
 

May  22, 2018  November 27, 2018 
 

June  12, 2018 December 11, 2018 
 

June  26, 2018 December 18, 2018* 
 

 
Any changes to the regular meeting schedule will be determined by Board action and special 
notice of any variance in date, time, or location will be posted and mailed to persons who have 
requested the same. 

Public Work Sessions - 2018 
Public work sessions will be held at 7:00 a.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 
2720 California Road, Elkhart.  
 

January 16, 2018 July  17, 2018 
February 22 and 23, 2018* August  21, 2018 
March  20, 2018  September 18, 2018 
April   17, 2018 November  20, 2018 
May  15, 2018 December  18, 2018** 
June  19, 2018  
* two-day retreat ** denotes 8:00 a.m. 

 
The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Secretary to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s administrative 
office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 

 
Approved by Board –  



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8405/page 1 of 5 
 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ISSUES - INDOOR AIR QUALITY,  

ANIMALS IN THE CLASSROOM,  
AND IDLING VEHICLES ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 

 
 
The Board recognizes its responsibility relative to student, employee, and visitor 
health and safety, and the need for development of a comprehensive program 
designed to provide a healthy, safe, and secure environment on Corporation property 
and at Corporation-sponsored activities.  To achieve this, it is the intent of the Board 
that the Corporation will avail itself of the most current, proven technologies in the 
fields of health, safety, and environmental sciences. 
 
STUDENT, EMPLOYEE, AND VISITOR HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 
The Corporation shall develop and implement an environmental health and safety 
program that is positive, proactive, integrates responsibilities within the 
Corporation, and promotes and incorporates the following: 
 
 A. Procedures describing a hazard identification and abatement 

program. 
  
 B. Procedures that promote environmental health and safety 

awareness. 
   
 C. Procedures directed toward the safety and health of students during 

transportation to and from school, at school, and during 
participation in school-related activities.   

   
 D. Procedures related to Corporation employee health and safety 

issues. 
   
 E. Procedures describing an accident reporting and investigation 

system. 
   
 F. Procedures that detail plans for foreseeable emergencies and fire 

prevention. 
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8405/page 2 of 5 
 
 
 
ANIMALS IN CLASSROOMS 
 
Live animals shall be allowed in the classroom for educational purposes with the 
prior approval of the principal.   
 
Animals brought into a classroom must be humanely and properly housed in cages 
or leashed.  Animals brought into the classroom must be known to be in good 
health.  Animals that are poisonous, venomous, or dangerous will not be allowed in 
the classroom. 
 
When bringing an animal into the classroom, considerations must be given to 
students or staff who may be allergic to the animal.  In advance of the animal being 
brought to school, a notification will be sent home with the students in that class 
informing parents of the type of animal that will be coming into the classroom.  
Parents will have an opportunity to notify the teacher or the principal if their child is 
allergic to the animal.  If a parent responds about a concern regarding a possible 
allergic reaction to the animal, the principal and teacher shall discuss options that 
may be considered.  The name of the student with the allergy shall remain 
confidential. 
 
If after an animal is brought to class and school officials become aware that an 
individual did have an allergic reaction, the school shall resolve the issue and 
provide the necessary cleaning of all surfaces in the classroom to remove the 
allergen. 
 
The care of an animal is the responsibility of the teacher.  Cages and aquariums 
shall be cleaned by the teacher, not a student.  Animal waste and materials from the 
cages shall be bagged and disposed of in a proper manner in a proper outside trash 
container.  Waste water from an aquarium may be disposed of by flushing it down a 
toilet or any sink where food is not prepared.  For animals staying in the classroom 
for longer than that day, it is the teacher’s responsibility to provide care over the 
weekends and during vacations. 
 
Under the teacher’s supervision, students may handle the animal in the classroom 
after being given instruction on proper handling techniques for handling the animal, 
as well as proper hand washing techniques after handling the animal.  When 
appropriate, students may feed the animal under the supervision of the teacher. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8405/page 3 of 5 
 
 
 
Live animal presentations and assemblies under the supervision and control of a 
trained professional may at times have more unique animals and may not be 
allowed in the classrooms.  These presentations are allowed in accordance with the 
provisions of this policy. 
 
Exceptions to this policy are service animals and fish in an aquarium provided the 
fish are of a reasonable size and quantity. 
 
Owners of pets (see AG 8605A) and service animals (see AG 9160B) brought on 
school property are liable for any harm or injury caused by the animal to other 
students, staff, visitors, and/or property. 
 
INDOOR AIR QUALITY (IAQ) 
 
The Superintendent shall appoint a person to serve as the Indoor Air Quality (IAQ) 
Coordinator for the school corporation.  The IAQ Coordinator shall serve as the lead 
contact person for matters related to indoor air quality in the facilities operated by 
the school Corporation.  The IAQ Coordinator contact information shall be available 
to all students, parents, employees, and visitors by publishing the information on 
the school corporation’s website and in school handbooks.  The school corporation 
shall also notify the Indiana State Department of Health (ISDH) of the IAQ 
Coordinator’s name and contact information. 
 
Each school facility is to meet criteria established by the ISDH.  During inspections 
by the ISDH, the inspector will investigate any condition that is or could be 
contributing to poor air quality including, but not limited to the following:  carbon 
dioxide levels, humidity, evidence of mold or water damage, and excess dust. 
 
The Board recognizes that excessive moisture levels within the schools can lead to 
conditions that are optimum for the development of biological contaminants, such 
as mold and fungi on building surfaces.  The Board further recognizes that the 
presence of these contaminants can be harmful on contact with respiratory tissue. 
 
Contributing factors to excessive moisture levels include the following: 
 
 A. roof leaks 
   
 B. structural defects in the building 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8405/page 4 of 5 
 
 
   
 C. improperly controlled humidity levels 
   
 D. faulty HVAC systems 
 
As preventative measures, the Corporation shall do the following: 
 
 A. address prevention of water intrusion as a priority IAQ issue and 

implement strategies toward its elimination 
  
 When a water leak or intrusion is discovered, corrective action shall 

be taken within forty-eight (48) hours. 
  
 B. maintain environmental conditions in occupied areas that are in 

compliance with applicable regulations and strive to conform to 
consensus industry standards 

  
 C. implement a preventative maintenance program for HVAC systems  
  
 D. implement a system for insuring materials used and purchased for 

use in the construction, furnishing and maintenance, including 
cleaning of facilities, do not contribute to health hazards to 
employees and students by degrading the quality of indoor air 

  
 In addition, activities that create indoor air quality health hazards 

shall not be permitted. 
  
 E. when mold or mold contaminated material is discovered, corrective 

action shall be taken within forty-eight (48) hours 
 
Further, the school corporation shall endeavor to reduce irritants by not allowing 
the use of ozone generators sold as air purifiers while students are present in the 
classroom.  Scented candles and air fresheners are not to be used in the classrooms. 
 
In addition, the Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines for the 
proper monitoring of the factors that contribute to excessive moisture and for the 
development of mitigation plans when, and if, problems with IAQ are identified. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8405/page 5 of 5 
 
 
 
SCHOOL BUS AND OTHER VEHICLE IDLING 
 
In accordance with the Indiana State Department of Health regulations, the Board 
endeavors to limit vehicle emissions that may be introduced into school facilities 
harming the indoor air quality. 
 
The Corporation shall determine areas where idling is prohibited and post signs. 
 
Drivers of all public and private vehicles are to turn off the engine if the vehicle is to 
be stopped for more than five (5) minutes in locations where the vehicle 
exhaust may be drawn into the building or while on school grounds.  See 
Policy 8615 and AG 8615. 
 
The staff will be informed of this policy at the start of each school year.  Parents and 
students will be informed of this policy at the start of each school year at annual 
orientations or through student/parent handbooks. 
 
SEE ALSO THE FOLLOWING RELATED POLICIES: 
 
Policy 8420 - Emergency Evacuation of Schools 
Policy 8431 - Chemical Management and Preparedness for Toxic or Asbestos 

Hazard 
Policy 8432 - Pest Control and Use of Pesticides 
Policy 8442  - Reporting Accidents 
Policy 8450  - Control of Casual-Contact Communicable Diseases 
Policy 8453  - Control of Noncasual-Contact Communicable Diseases 
Policy 8453.01 - Control of Blood-Borne Pathogens 
Policy 8615 - Idling School Buses and Other Idling Vehicles on School 

Property 
 
 
 
Indiana Department of Health Model Policies 
I.C. 16-19-3-5, 16-41-37.5 
410 IAC 33-4-1 through 8 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 20132016 
August 8, 2017 





 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  August 8, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified for employment in the 2017-18 

school year: 

 

Jerica Burns   Central/Counselor 

 

Nora Chavez-Morales  Central/Counselor 

 

Kathleen Malas  Pierre Moran/Special Education 

 

Veronica McFerson  Pierre Moran/Counselor 

 

Elizabeth Miller  Roosevelt/Media 

 

Matthew Perkey  Elkhart Academy/Social Studies 

 

Julie Rokop   PACE/Special Education 

 

Katie Treadway  Daly/Grade 4 

 

Joseph Urednick  Monger/Grade 6 

 

Taryn Weidner  Beck/Fine Arts 

 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following staff effective June 30, 2017: 

 

Kathy Allen  Central/FACS  15 Years of Service   

 

Jill Szyarto  Pinewood/Grade 4 41 Years of Service  
 

 

c. Resignation – We report the following resignation of the following employees: 

 

Joyce Bilbrey   North Side/Special Education 

Began:  8/14/06   Resign:  6/30/17 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Mary Boehman  Memorial/Spanish 

Began:  8/2/16   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Raynard Caldwell  Feeser/Grade 6 

  Began:  8/22/05   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Kristy Camacho  Hawthorne/Grade 3 

  Began:  8/13/12   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Jane Eggleston   Central/Language arts 

  Began:  8/13/14   Resign:  6/30/17 

  

  Nathan Geise   Roosevelt/Grade 5 

  Began:  8/13/07   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Bryan Hunter   Memorial/Social Studies 

  Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Jill Robison   Roosevelt/Grade 4 

  Began:  8/12/13   Resign:  6/12/17 

   

  Nicole Stanifer   Central/FACS 

  Began:  8/2/16   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

  Kyle Worden   Pierre Moran/Science 

  Began:  8/12/13   Resign:  6/30/17 

 

   

d. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

  Nicole Martinez  Cleveland/ENL 

  Begin:  9/1/17   End:  9/22/17 

 

e. Personal Leave – We recommend a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Jamie Haradine  Pinewood/Grade 4 

Begin:  8/15/17   End:  6/6/18 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

Shannan Asbury   Cleveland/Secretary 

Began: 05/18/15   Resign: 07/21/17 

 

Anita Bates    Roosevelt/Lunch Para 

 Began: 08/14/13    Resign: 07/25/17 

 

Larry Brown    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 09/30/14   Resign: 07/19/17 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Domenick Butler   Pierre Moran/ Custodian 

Began: 03/14/16   Resign: 07/24/17 

 

Hayley Byrd    PACE/Child Care Paraprofessional 

Began: 02/28/17   Resign: 07/26/17 

 

Rachel Campagnoli   Feeser/Paraprofessional 

Began: 08/06/15   Resign: 07/26/17 

 

Esther Hargrove   Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/30/08    Resign: 07/20/17 

 

Bethanie Hartman   Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 09/09/14   Resign: 08/01/17 

 

Derrick Johnson   Beck/Academic Trainer 

Began: 02/29/16   Resign: 07/28/17 

 

Scott Laird    Tech Services/ Support Tech I 

Began: 03/15/16   Resign: 08/04/17 

 

David Salmon    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 03/13/17   Resign: 07/27/17 

 

Mary Sanders    North Side/Food Service    

Began: 05/18/06   Resign: 07/25/17 

 

Emily Toledo    Hawthorne/Para-keyboarding 

Began: 08/4/15    Resign: 07/23/17 

 

 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employee: 

 

Elizabeth Delks   Central/Secretary 

Began: 05/31/17   PE: 07/25/17 

 

 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  August 8, 2017 

 

Addendum to Personnel report 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointments: 

 

Mindy King  Elkhart Academy/Assistant Principal  Eff:  8/1/17 

 

Sarita Stevens  Elkhart Academy/Principal   Eff:  8/14/17  

 

 

b. Change to Maternity Leave -  We recommend a change to a maternity leave for the following 

employee: 

 

Lindsay Gagyi   Daly/Grade 3 

Begin:  8/21/17   End:  9/14/17 
 


	Agenda - August 8, 2017
	Minutes - Work Session July 25 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting July 25 2017
	Gift Acceptance - Monger
	2016-2017 Annual Financial Report Revised
	School Board Resolution Preliminarily Approving Form of Amendment to Lease and Related Matters
	Draft of First Amendment to Lease
	Fundraiser
	Board Policy 5410 2nd
	PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS

	Board Meeting Schedule 2018 proposed
	Board Policy 8405 1st
	ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ISSUES - INDOOR AIR QUALITY,
	ANIMALS IN THE CLASSROOM,
	AND IDLING VEHICLES ON SCHOOL PROPERTY

	Grants
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum

